
such as maple and alder, and much 
brush, the only improvement on 
the tract being a small log house. 
He ,cleared about sixty acres, and 
planted an orchard, and raised 
crops of hay and po:tatoes. His 
potatoes he contracted to the 
Northern Pacific Railroad for 
their dining cars. 

In 1891 he was united in mar­
riage to Johanna Larsen, who was 
also born in Norway, the daughter 
of Lars and Bertha Larsen. Peter 
and Johanna raised a fine family 
of six: Cass, Bessie, Lottie, Victor, 
Elmer and Percy. 

Johanna carded their own wool, 
spun yarn on her spinning wheel, 
and then proceeded to knit many 
stockings for her family, and out­
siders who would place orders 
with her. 

One day when Victor was a 
young child, as children will do, 
swallowed an open safety pin 
which became lodged in his throat. 
His father !Pete, hurridly equipped 
his horse, grabbed his son up and 
beaded towaIDd iHilhjboro to the 
doctor via the old Grindstone road 
and Buxton, changed hor,ses at 
Buxton, then ::It ,Forest Grove ob­
tained a horse and buggy onto 
Hillsboro. The doctor saved Vic­
tors life by a miracle. 

,In 1920, Pete, ' as he was 'Called 
was one of the organizers of the 
Bank of Vernonia, of which he 
was elected vice president. In 
1924 he was appointed road mas­
ter of the largest district in Col­
umbia county and worked hard 
for the improvement of the roads. 
iHe served for 25 years as a mem­
ber of the school board of his 
district and was a member of the 
high school board of Vernonia. 

In the early years, when bears 
were numerous and did extensive 
damage to the early settlers' or­
chards, Pete and his son :Elmer 
would do some trapping around 
the country. One ofth{!ir tr,aps 
was set close by an apple tree on 
the Huber place, now occupied by 
the Owens fiamily. Now old bruin 
got caught in this trap, and shin­
nied up the tree, trap and all. 
When Pete and Elmer showed up, 
Pete took his rifle and shot the 
bear, which slipped down the tree 
and was left hanging a foot or so 
from the ground-the pl'actical 
minded Pete proceeds to say to 
the Hubers young daughter. "Nev­
ada, he is already to butcher". 

The above information was ob­
tained from many of the Berger­
son's friends and relatives. 

APIARY 

Perhaps one of the strangest 
names in Oregoil history is Apiary, 
which settlement is about eight 
miles southwest of 'Rainier. It 
was so named by !Mr. iDavid M. 
iDorsey who was an e,arly settler. 
'He had a bee ranch, accounting 
for the name, and he was the first 
postmaster, the office being es-

tablished in 1889. Among the set­
tlers who came in the late 1880's 
were several families who still 
live in the area, among them the 
Brown, King, Kirby, Dippold, Gal­
lion, Alley, Grindle, Wilson and 
Lowman families. 

Mrs. Jiared Wilson was born in 
Webster, County, Iowa, in 1846 or 



1847, eighty miles north of Fort 
De'S MQines, where soldiers were 
stationed to protect early settlers 
from the Indians. She married 
a CivM War veteran Jared WHson 
in 1865, and lived there until she 
had four children, then moved to 
Cloud county, K:ansas, where she 
lived two years. They then mov­
ed to !Dayton, Yamhill county, Ore­
gon, and then to Beaver Valley, 
living on the same farm for 55 
years. She nem moved to Fern 
Hill. She left many descendants. 

William L. Brown and Miss 
Irene Lowman were married at 
Olive Hill, Kentucky, in 1885, 
They came to Portland ,by train, 
then to Rainier 'by boat in 1887, 
with two small children, the 
youngest of whom passed away 
within a month of their arrival. 
rrhe following summer they took 
up a homeste'adat what was later 
known as ~piary. This property 
is still owned by the heirs, and a 
bachelor son is now living in the 
original house. 

Mr. Brown became postmaster 
at Apiary in 1894 and held that 
office until a rural route was es­
tablished in December, 1923. Mr. 
Brown passed away at the home 
in iD€ceffilOOr, 1932,and !Mrs. 
IBrown at ISit.Vincent's hoSlPital in 
'December, 1'937. They with sev­
eral of their children are buried 
in the Apiary cemetery, about one 
mile from the ' home place. 

To !Mr. and iMr,s. Brown were 
born ,15 children, ten sons and 
five daughters, three of whom 
died in infancy. There are 25 
grand children ,and 53 great grand 
children. 

The oldest son was killed in a 
mill explosion near the home in 
December, '1911, leaving a wife 

and a 15 month old daughter. The 
first sOn born on the homestead 
is now living in iPorUand. An­
other son was killed while working 
for Clark and Wilson Co. i~ Sep­
tember, 19311, leaving a wife and 
four small children. lAnother son 
was ~illed in a traffic accident 
near Vancouver in 1938. The 
youngest daughter rpassed away at 
¥ancouver in 193'6, leaving a hus­
band and three small children. 

Three sons, Joseph, Allen and 
Wilder, 'and two daughters, Alma 
IBurnham and IGrace Achibald, 
now live near Rainier" and one 
daughter, Lucille Hiaarstad, is 
now living at Eatonville, Washing­
ton. Always interested in local 
affairs, both Mr. and Mrs. Brown 
served on ,the school board for 
many years, lhe as director and 
she as clerk of the board. (This 
material was submitted ,by iMrs. 
Loyal Brown, ,a daughter in law, 
of Portland. Loyal Brown died 
on May 26, 1962 after this story 
was written. !Mrs. Brown was the 
former Elva Orr of Long iBeach, 
Washington.) 

Recently [Mrs. Dorothy King 
Miller of Tualatin, Washington 
county, wrote to inquire if we 
knew of her gl"andfather, William 
C. King, and his bl"Other, Samuel 
!E. King, who came to Apiary as 
homesteaders in 1887. By in­
quiry through the local papers it 
was established that William C. 
King was killed in ,a loggingacci­
dent in 1898, leaving two small 
sons. His wife, !Nettie Jones King, 
taught school locally, and soon 
married IOharlesBoisvert. lIt was 
learned that the King brothers 
had come from the east, and a 
letter brought the news that a 
sister,. now 85 years old, was still 
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alive ,and happy to get news from 
her brother's grand daughter. The 
old school census records and 
teacher certificate records tell 
many facts about this family and 
others. Llt has been most gratify­
ing to be ,able to piece this history 
together after so many years. 

Like other early 'settlements, fue 
picture has changed, and there 
are now productive farms where 
the pioneers carved out homes 

from the dense forest. Some land 
which is too rough to be profitably 
farmed is be1ng reforested at this 
t ime, and one can only surmise 
the future development. a'he lit­
tle postoffices along the country 
roads 'are gone, and mail is deliv­
eredby oarrier, each 'route being 
many miles in length, and every­
one recehl1ing madl each day. Mod­
ern conveniences have come to 
all, and pioneering as formerly 
known is a thing of the past. 

EARLY DOCTORS OF COLUMBIA 
COUNTY 

The earliest doctor who was an 
Oregon native probably was Wil­
liam M~ay, son of Thomas Mc­
Kay, who had his home at Scap­
poose. rrhe family had a farm 
northeast of the present town ~ 
the late 1820's until the mother 
died of the pestilence which struck 
the lower COlumbia Indians in 
1629-'30. At that time Tom had 
three sons, iWHHam, Alexander 
and John. WilHam was ,born in 
1624. !En rl633 William was going 
to school to John !Ball at Vancou­
ver, the first school teacher in the 
Oregon country. 

Jason Lee visited Tom McKay's 
Soappoose farm in ,1'834, and Tom 
acted as guide to Jason Lee in 
finding a site near Salem for his 
Methodist mission. When Jason 
Lee went east in 1838, he took 
the three sons of Tom McKay with 
him. 'William was enrolled in a 
medical school at Utica, N. Y., 
and the other two were enrolled 
in a school in Massachusettes. In 
due :time, the gl"aduation of Wil-
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liam came, and he returned to 
Oregon to minister to his own peo­
.pIe. Brobably lOr. McLoughlin in­
fulenced Tom in decid,ing the boy 
should become a doctor, since he 
was Tom's stepfather, and very in­
terested in the welfare of the fam­
ily and the Indians. William later­
went to the Pendleton area, where 
he practiced as a physician 
throughout his life time. 

An early doctor 1n rthe St. !Helens 
area was iHerry R. Cliff who was 
born in England in 1000, and grad­
uated from Bartholemew's Medi­
cal college in London in 18'80. He 
served in the British navy two 
years, being assigned to the Aus­
tralian station where he was mar­
ried to an Austrralian girl in 1881. 
In 1884 he came to St. Helens, re­
maining here as a practicing phy­
sician until 1'908. He moved to 
BOl"tland wher'e he became Mult­
nomah county physician and dir­
ector of the :M:ultnomah county 
hospital. 

Another early doctor was Dr. 


	06

